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1. Name of Property

historic name  Pasadena Playhouse Historic District

othsr names/site number N/A

2. Location

464-611 E. Colorado Blvd., 550-655 E. Green St.

street & numter 21-127 S. El Molino Ave., 150 N. - 101 S. Madison Ave. - [J not for publication
city ortown  Pasadena . O vicinity
state California codeCA  county Los Angeles Co.  code 037  zip code 91101

3. State/Federal Agency Certlfication

As the designated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act of 1986, as amentiad, (herebyoamfy that this - nomination

] request for detarmination of eligibility meets the documentation standards tofregstamg proporties in of Historic Places

and meets the procacdural and professional requirements set forth in 36 CFR Past 60. In my opirton, mepmpe meets does not meet the

Natiorial Register Criteria. | recommend that this property be considered significant [} natonally In} stakm% Iy, ( DSeo continuation
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Name of Property

County and St

5. Classification

OCwnership of Property Category of Property

(Check as mary boxos as apply) {Check only cne Box)
[X] privata [[] building(s)
[] public-iocal X district

L_] public-State

D site
[] structure

D object

Name of related muitiple property listing
(Enter “N/A" if property is nct part of a multiple property listing.)

/A

[] public-Federal

Number of Resources within Property
{Do not inciude previously listed resources in the count.)

Contributing Noncontributing
42 10 buildings
J 0 sites
0 -0 structures
i} i 1 objects
43 11 Total

Number of contributing resources previously
listed In the National Register

All buildings: Singer Building (1)
-5 3n 3 nominations First Trust Bldg(2)

6. Function or Usa

Historic Functions
{Enter categonies from instructions)

RECREATION AND CULTURE/Theater
COMMERCE/TRADE/Specialty Store

Pasadena Playhouse (2
Current Functions :
{Entar categories from instructions)
RECREATION AND CULTURE/Theater
COMMER.CE/TRADE/Specialty Store

RELIGION/Religious Facility RELIGION/Religious Facility
COMMERCE/TRADE/Financial Institution COMMERCE;TRADE/Financial Institution
COMMERCE/TRADE/Professional COMMERCE/TRADE/Professional
"DOMESTIC/Single Dwelling DOMESTIC/Single Dwelling
DOMESTIC/Multiple Dwelling DOMESTIC/Multiple Dwelling

7. Ceacrintion

Architactural Cizssification Materlais

(Eric: catogories from instructicns)

Spaiiish Colonial Revival

AstDeco

Beaus Arts

N:rrative Description

(Enter categories ioin instructions}

foundation CONCRETE

wals STUCCO
_TERRA COTTA

r00f  TERRA COTTA
other BRICK

{De serivs the historic and current condition of the property on cne or more continualion sheets.)

See Conuanuaton Sheets.



Name of Property ~ =~

‘County and State

8. Statement of Significance

Appiicable National Register Criteria

(Mark "x" in one or more boxes for the criteria qualifying the property for
National Register listing.)

E A Property is associated with events
that have made a significant contribution to the
broad patterns of our history.

D B - Propenty is associated with the lives of
persons significant in our past.

Property embodies the distinctive characteristics of

@ C a type, period, or method of construction or represents
the work of a master, or possesses high artistic values,
or represents a significant and distinguishable entity
whose components lack individual distinction.

E] D Property has yielded, or is likely to yield information
important in prehistory or history.

Criteria Conslderations
(Mark “x" in all the boxes that apply.)
Property is:

D A owned by a religious institution or used fo- rsligious
purposes.

D B removed from its original location.

[Jc abirhplace or agrave.

D D acemetery.

[:] E araconstructed building, object,or structure.
D F accmmarmorative property.

'D G less than 50 years «f age or achieved signiticance
within the past 50 yaars.

Narrative Statement of Significance
(Explair: the sigrificance of the preperty on one or mare continuation shoets.)

Areas of Signlificance
(Enter categories from instructions)

Architecture
Community Planning and Development
Performing Arts

Cammerce

Period of Significance
1906 - 1944

Significant Dates
N/A

Significant Person
N/A

Cultural Afiiilation
N/A

Architect/Builder
Listed under "Contributing Buildings" in sect. 7.

9. Major Bibllographizal Referen:es

Bibliography

(Cite the books, articles, and other sources in preparing this form on one or more continuation sheets.)

Previous documentation on file {NPS):

E] preliminary determination of individual listing (36
CFR 67) has been requested

praviously listed in the National Register
previcusly detarmined eligible by the Nationzi Register

designated a National Historic Landmark

recorded by Historic American Buildiags Survey
#

recorded by Historic American Enginsering Record
#

0O Ootin

Primary location of additional data:
State Historic Preservation Office

Other State agency
Federal agency
Local government
University

Other

Name of repository:
City of Pasadena - Urban Conscrvation Archives
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0. Geogrupiical Data

Acraaqge of Property _24.5 .

UTM Rererences
(Piace addtona’ UTM referencas on a contiounation sheel.)
Lo DPpgpeel Bole v 5:_“' stp] plspBoo) polsjess j
Zono Easting Northing . Zona Easting Northing
2fip] phebspi Bolislesel alig] plabag) prfshopl

D See continuaiion sheat
Verpal Boundary Description
{Dascribe the boundaries of the property on 2 continuation sheet.)

Boundary Justification
s Explain why the boundaries were selactad on a continuation sheet.)
11. Form Prepared By

1.eonard Kliwinski, Project Manazer; James C. Wilson, Principal

nameditic

omarizaion L nirtieth Street Architects, e, ’ date  11/22/93
Srect&number 2821 Newport Blvd. telephone (714) 673-2643
ctvoriown Newport Beach ' aate California 2p code 92663

Addlilonal Documentation
(Submit the foliawing tams with the completed form:)

Ceontinuation Sheets

Maus
A US%S map (7.5 or 15 minute serias) indicaiing the property's location.

A Skeich map for histes’; districts and renert’ss hating large acreage of NUMEroUs resources.
Photagrerhs

Representative hlack and white photographs of the croperty.

Azditioral items
{heck with the SIFO o FPO for any ad-ifonal iems)

Eroparty Owner

namefifie

et & number N teiephone
cily OF town _ side_ o Zpoode

Paperwork Heducilon Act Statement:  This information * heing colluciod for applicatons o the Maticnai Register of Histeric Plaves fo roninals
properiies «r bisting or determine eligibility %or isting, 1o st propories, and b amend existing lisings. Pespensa io s request is recuired 1o obtan & banof
in accordance vith tho National Mistoric Preservatior Azt, as amenced (16 U.S.C. 470 et seq,).

Estimated Burdan Stalement: Public reporiing bueden: for this fom is estimated 10 avemge 120 hours per resporise including the ime o7 reviewing
instructions, gathening and maintaining datr, pod complebng anc reviewing the form. Direct comments regarding this burden ostimata or any aspact of this
forrn o 6 Calet, ACministrative Senaces Division, Nationai Park Service. P.0. Box 37127, Washingten, DC 20013-7127; and the Office of Menagement and
Budgot, Paperwerk Hadustions Project {1024-0018), Wastington, 2C 20503.
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Pasadena Playhouse Historic District
Los Angeles Couniy, CA

DESCRIPTION

The Pusadena Playhouse Historic Disirict cortains spproximately 50 buildings which represent
the castward growth of the city’s urban character and amenities during the 1920s and 1930s. The
buildings collectively contributz to the visuai character of the district and create a distinctive
"gense of place.” The district is partially Iocated along Colorado Boulevard, once the oid Route
€6 und a central ceremonial street since the City's beginning. A significant portion of the districi
runs along South E! Molino Avenue, the home of the Pasadena Playhouse, a cultural and
atchitectural focus of the district. Other buildings included in the district which share common
physical and historical characterisiics are located along nearby Green Street and Madison
Avenue,

Pasadena's commercial and cultural center was concentrated downtown in what is now known as
the Gid Pasadena Historic District (National Register, 1983) until the 1920s. Spurred primarily
hv the construction of the nearby Civic Center, a nationally significant example of civic art in the
"Oit y Beautiful” sivie of the 1920s, (Nationai Register Historic District, 1978), that decade saw
the Husiness and financial commm: runity begin to move castward along Colorado Boulevard. Retail
ane Mwmkv storss migrated for ciose proximity to the popular Hotel Maryland on Colorade
between Los Robles and Euclid, aiso ¢n the eastern sxde of downtown, New cultural, religious
and 1«°<\1dr*nt1al facilities soon followed. The Pasadena Playhouse Historic District includes thc
mcotintact and comiguous collection ot buildings which are representative of this "second wave”
of growtn in the City of Pasadena. The boendanes seiscred for the district relate to distinct
cnanges in the visual character of the area, inciuding the appearance of non-contributing {altered
~ooen) buildings awd parking oy vacant Jots.

:;ix::;:, is inception, the disirict has bcvn a desirable urban place for working, dwelling, recreatior:
and commerce. An advertisement Sound in the Pasadens Star-Mews of April 24, 1923 for the
Boreelonz Apartments at 835 N, Madiscn Avenue succinctiy descrives the appeal of the Pasadens
Plavhouse Historic District in its heyday:

‘The location: right in the zone of all the activitics - social, religious, commercial
and amusemsnt - yet a biock away from the traffic, noise and dust of Colorado
street - just one block rom interurban cac lines - and convenient to cafes,
restavrants and hotels.

The streets of the district have retzained this feeling and atmosphere to the present day. Whiic
some Of the buildings have been aliered over time to a certain degree, *he contributing buildings
g erally retain the appearance of the d;:'uicr during its period of significance. Elements such as
i Listoric streedights along both sides of Oakland Aveaue contribute to this character. The
Oaklang Avenue streetscape alse i inciudes some of the more significau«¢ buildings in the district,
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Pasadena Playhouse Bistoric District
Los Angeles County, CA

which actually front oi: other streets, such as the Sta-News Building, the Singer Building, the
First Mcthodist Church and the First Church of Christ Scientist.

The mejority of the conwibuting bnildings within the district share a consistent design
vocabuiary. This vecabulary includes tiie presence of repeating bays; building front built to the
sireet edge; differentiaied ground ievel, middle and iop; huinan-scaled elements; tile roofs when
visible from street; upper windows in recessed openings; lower windows that open broadly to the
street; and well marked, articulated entrances.

Small scale one and two-s:ory comrercial buildings predominate in the Pasadena Playhouse
Historic District, but collectively, the bui}dings Hlustrate a2 wide variety of scale, style and use.
Multi-story commercial buildings s well as iarge churches are interspersed throughout the
disrict. Tall buildings located among the shops oa Colorado Boulevard, mcludmg the Star-News
Building at 525 E. Colorado and the First Trust Buiiding at 587-611 B. Colorado (National
Regisier. 1786), as weli as the bread lanes of the Boulevard. impart 2 dlstmctly urban character to
this mortor. of the district.

Green Street has an intimate scale anc character. Lined on poth sides with laurel trees, the
reiatively narrow street contains mo:iy cne and two-stor structures built for specialty retail vse.
The bicck of 1920s and 19305 period ravival baildings from 561 to 655 Green Street is an
attvactive and pedestrian-scaled grouping. They are consirucied of brick and concrete and are
clad ba s variety of raaterials including stuceo, cast stone, terra cotta and ceramic tiles. Most of
the buiidin 35 front up to the property iine, with the excepticn of the gas station at nuinber 650,
vehich 1t ozt back The corner buildings are swongly urir‘mcd to both streets, having comer
eutrances zngled 45-degress to the streets. Th= high level of iniegrity and overall coherence of
sca% goaxe this oae of thc most significant and pleasant aress on Green Street, Also locatzd on
:- As steenr ave some larger scale historic struciures including the Pacific Telephone Company
fuilding “currently undergoing rehabilitation) and the Classical Revival style First Thurch of
Chrigy Screntist with its spacicus lawns.

A diverse range of architectural styles is represented i iac Pasadena Playheouse Historic District.
Sevaral of the moc;t significant buildings in the 5pamm Colonial Revival style are located in one
D’oci: cf South El Moline Avenue. The Lockwood Building (No. Z21-27) is an elegant, ornate

yarpi of the sxryle. and the Pasadena Playhouse (No. 35- 30 National Register, 19"5) adads
Mission i Pueblo Revival elements to iis saterpretation. Svmes Cadillac (635 E. Green S:.) at
the ¢-iner of El Melino coniributes iis similar finishes and subtle detailing to the Spanish flavor
of this block. Also within e district Sirgar building (520-528 %=. Colorado: National
FPegister, 1934) is an excellent examele cf Lhc Spanish Celonial Revivai with exuberant detailing.
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The Mira Monte Hotel (127 S. El Molino) as well as the Barcelona Apartments (85 N. Madison)
were designed in the more restiained Mediterranear Revival style. Many of the small retail
buildings, incinding some along Green Street, were designed in the Spanish Revival siyle. Other
styles used for this building tvpe include Georgian Revival (Harry FitzGerald, Inc. at 489 E.
Colorado) and Art Deco (Warner Building at 469-483 E. Colorado).

Churches reinforce the cultural atmesphere of the disirict and illustrate the architectural quality
and diversity of the district. Two are designed in the Gothiz Revival style, the Presbyterian
Church Parish House at 541 E. Colorado and the First Methogcist Church at 500 E. Colorado. The
First Church of Christ Scientis: is in the Classical Revival style.

Two historic signs are within the district: the Zinke's Shoe Repair neon sign (1948)
and the Pasadeau Playhouse sign (1935). These sigiis are significant urban design features in the
district and arc the only remaining examples of hisiotic neun signs remaining within the district.

While the Pasadena Playhouse Histeric Distric: is prizrarily non-residential in character, several
early houses de rernain which document the pre-1920 residential nature of the area. The shingled
Craftzman styie house at 105 §. El Molino Avenue (1906) and the Tudor Revival style house at
110 5. E Molino Avenue (1907; remain as fine cxaniples of their style, and are representative of
the residential chiaracter which was once found on ¢ll streets of the district. Similar houses once
finec the surrounding streets (including Colorado Boulevard) but were razed for commercial
uses. The Mira Monte Hotel and the Barcelona Apartments exemplify both the multi-family
property type in the district and the Spanish/Mediterranean design tread of the mid-1920s.

Tre following list gives tne address, year built, architect, historic naune (if known} and a brief
archizctursi/historical description for each contribuiing ouilding. The primary sources used to
comapile the list were Pasadena's Architeciurai and listorical Inventory forms and State of
Calitornia Historic Resources Inventory forms located in the Ciity of Pasadena Urban
Conservation Archives.

Coniributing Ruildings

1. 469-483 E. Colorado Blvd. Built: 1927
Warzer Building Architect: Marston and Maybury

Designed i 1327 by one of Pasadena's leading firms, Marston and Maybury, this building
czpresses the cxuberance of Art Deco decoration better than any other in Pasadena.
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The reinforced concrete structure is a long (130 feet), single-story string of retail spaces, able to
house six or seven individual small shops, bu: now used {or a single tusiness. The Art Deco
decoration on the facade was designed by Jess Stanton, who also did design work on the
Pasadena Civic Auditorium.

The compleely fanciful perforated design is based on spiral forms, soimewhat reminiscent of sea
shells. and executed in green glazed terra cotia forming a grille for ihe transoms above the
display windows. The ierra cotta was built by Gladding, Mc Bean and Co. The major portion of
the facade is blank with small relief panels at intervals repeating the circle, swirl and spiral
design motifs.

The hvilding was comunissioned by Thomas W. Warner, promineni Pasadena citizen and founder
of the Borg-Warner Company. In its early years it housed a row of exciusive shops catering to
the gnosis of the nearby Maryland Hotel and other wealthy winter visitors to Pasadena.

The original shops at the time of the building's opening, reoresentative of the type of specialty
retail which led the Pusadena Playhouse Historic District to thrive commercially, included:
Howa:ter Miilinery; George A. Clark Company, "Correct Dress for Men”; Fred T. Huggirs,
Shaes: Mex Littwitz, Tuc., Fine Linens; A, Schmidt & Sons, Silverware; and Siebrecht's House of
Flowers.

2. 83 =, Colerado Blvd. Built: €24
Hany FitzGeraid, ne, Architect: Bennets and Haskell

" one- story stuceo building, designed ir 192€ Uy architects Cyril Bennett and Fiich
i1, rernains one of the most etegant and least alter- ! ¢+ all of Colorado Boulevard. It was
sulli for Rary FitzGerald, who operated one of Pasadena's most exclusive men's shops for over
~Cidty-Gvz years in ihis location.

- fuscan cciumns form a portico, separating thc deeply recessed entrance, with its
bronze deuble dours, from sidewalk traffic, Small windows flank the arcade,
arovicting Jisplay space both on the steset and within the puriice. Cast sione panels with a simple
wreath and gacland design in relief, incotporating a large stylized "HF", d=corate the space above
the windews. A slate-covered gabled rcof with three snzill prejectirg dormers add to the
butlding's Georgian Revival character.

Funciionaily, the building is designed to draw pedestrians :ato the portico o view the displays
anc then perhaps to enter the shop. The design is a remarkabdie departure from the red tile roofs
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and pale stucco walls of the Spzrish Revival style favorad at this tinue for commercial structures
along Colorado Boulevard.

The new building was haile¢ as "another step in the architectural, commercial aed metropolitan
growth of Pasadena” 1n the Pasadena Star-News of August 20, 1926, marveling ai the novel idea
of on-site parking, as well as hiiting at the future growth of the area:

The e Fitz(Gerald store is situated on Colorado Street, berween Oakiand and
Laos Robies avenues, where parking is not ordinarily crowded. It will be as the city
ETOWS. A feature of uhu new store, therefore, is a twenty-foot driveway on the east
side of the building, which leads to a commodious automabile parking section at
the rear,

525 E. Colorado Blvd. Built: 1924-25
Srar-News Buliding Architect: Joscph J. Biick

(2]

wsadena Star News nas its ongm° in Pasadena’s earlisst newspaper, the Chronicle, foundad

=]
fn 3
¢
]
")

in 38 NS LR ceessor wa ne Pasadena and Valley Union ({founded 1884), which merged with
the 3% adeny Sy {f man«.m‘ ;886; in 1889%. The Star in turn merged with the Pasadena Daily
Mews (Foutied 1890}, bec oming the present Star-Newe. It is unusual in havmg survived as 2

smam-ta w0 1oonl iewsnaper, now serving not just Pasadena but also the San Gabrizl Valley.

Designed by lecwns architect foseph J. Blick, the Star-News Building represeriis a solution to the
special rf*q”u':n*ex!fs nf 2 perwspaper office. Built in 1924-25 of reinforced conerete, the structure
was designed with massive wlalli and columns to support ihe weight of hundreds of tons of
Mmacalnery aad ofuipient Tias is apparent from the exterior in *hc deep-sat ground floor
windows, The exterior relief detsiling is executed in the glazed, lixht brown terra cotia with
which the sniire buiiding 15 faced. The ornamentation adds interest to the simple rectangular lines
of the building. lis most prominen: feature is the two-story hign arched entrance on Colorado,
with a clock set into the arch above the door. An ornate metal paitern outlinzs the arch and
frames the door and window panes. Arched windews on the third floor echo the form of the
entraince, Cviatiag @ graceiul rhvthun of repeating curves, especially along the western facade.

In building thiz n dquart""‘ the Star-News moved eastward, as did many other businesses
througiour e 1230, The mov= Is described in the article "Larger Site is Taken By Star-News”
~ \'ﬁlz‘

of MNovember L8 1973
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It is not the intention of the Star-News to give up its present buiidiag. Even after
the proposed ncw building is completed and occupied, an office will be
r"aintaincd as zt present at Raymond Avenue and Holly Strest. In this way, the

S:iar-News will be able tc serve, with equal convenience, ail pa.m of the rapidly
mowmg business district.

In its location wi th reference to the requirements of the Star-Mews and its patrons,
the new site couid hardly be improved upon. The lot is high and sxghtly, and the
catting through of Oakland Avenue will undoubtedly make it one of the choice
business corners of the city.

The opening of Oakland Avenue was decided on several months ago by the City
Board of Direcicrs as a civic betterment urgently needed, and preliniinary work in
cormvct on with it is now well underway. Another i importar:t improvement in this
iumediate vicinity bas ecently been announced by the Horae Telephons
(“‘ »mpany, which will erect iis building at the southeast corner, directly opposize
the proposed new 1:omie of the Siar-News.

R

These is no building nutaber 4 included.
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5. 587-611 E. Colorade Blvd. Buiit: 1927-28
and 34-42 N. Madison Ave.
First Trust Building and Garage Architects: Bennett and Haskeil

Currenily listed in the National Register, An eight-story reinforced concrete bank and office
building of Italian Renaissance Revival design, with the upper two stories stepped back and
topped by a glass and steel cupola. The building has an ornate, well-preserved interior which
includes murals by Alson Clark. North of the bank building is a two-story, L-shaped concrete
parking garage, an early and notabie Pasadena example, with retaii shops at the first floor.

6. 592 E. Colorado Bivd.
Zinke s Shoe Repair (sign only)

This 1948 neon pole sign is a rare remaining example of historic neon on Colorado Boulevard.
Oriented toward ihe automcbile, the sign represents the comimercial nature of the stzeet. The sign
is listed in the City of Pasadera Historic Sign Inveniory. When it is 50 yezrs old it will
be a contributor to the district.

7. 520-528 L. Colora:jo Blvd. Buili: 1926
Singer Building Arxchitzct: Everett Phipps Babcock

Currenily listed in the Mational Register. A two-story Spanish Colonial Revival building with
clay tile roof, cast sione finials and Churtigueresque ornamentation ai the entrarwes. The bulldia g
aise features ornate wrought iron panels and laraeins. The corner location abd enTance serve (o
focus additior:al gitention on the anusual reofline and fine detailing.

Buiit for the Singer Sewing Machire Company, this building was the Iocation of the Pasadena
Singer store for over fifty years. This outstanding example of a small commercial buildin ginthe
Spanish Colenial Revival style was rehatslitated for office use in 1983.
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8. 500 E. Colorado Bivd. Buili: 1622-1924
First Methodist Church Aichiteci: Thomas P. Barber

Set back from busy Cclorado Boulevard and accented by large trees, the First Methodisi Church
structure is composed of five interconnected Gothic Revival buildings. The main sanctuary, an
admiristration building, an assembly hall, a chapel and a Sunday School are all grouped around a
spacious colonnaded courtyard resembling a medieval cloister.

The exterior is clad in grey and cream cast stone, similar in appearance to Indiana limestone.
Conventional Engiish Gothic elements include gabled parapets raised above the roofline, simple
tuttresses aleng exterior walis between iarge windows, and foliated tracery patterns on the heavy
oak doors and on some of the windows.

In 1887, the Metnodists crected a new frame church at the scutheast corner of Marengo and
Coxora.do, then 2 fine residential area. In 1901, they replaced the frame building with: a stoie one.
The eastward expansion of she commercial center ‘and the construction of the Civic Ceuter in the
1679s made the Marerge-Colorade site a prime ore for development parposes. With the money
realized frors the sale of that property, the Methodists were able to build their large present
chusel, as well as to pay for the removal of the 6ld stone church to Holliston Avenuz, where it
was given to another congregation.

In the 1620s, 1he sitz ar Oakdand and Colorado was in the center of a new fashionable shopping

disivicy, close 16 the Maryland Hoiel and the Civic Cemer. Weah hy hotel guesis who were
Meithodisss «itended services a the Fivst Methodisr Church and donated the church organ.

) 472-480 E. Colorado Bivd. Buil 1922
Sruce Ruwldir g Architeci: Joseph F. Rhodes

Thc siting of this two-siory stucco clad brick building next to the high-rcofed chape! of the First
Meihodist Church s»rves to bridge the gap between that larger structure and the one-story
budings to the wesi. The first floor @toretfomﬂ have been remodeled, but the second floor retains
its onigir ai tenestration and decorstive elements, which include concrete piers scored to resernble
stone, deccrative panels below second story windows and a dentilied frizze below the parapet.
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10, 464-468 E. Colorado Blvd. Buili: 1922
Gerlach Building Architects: Marston and Van Pelt

This buiiding was originally 2 finer gift/art goods shop owaed by Walter W. (JC iach and his wite
Bertha for over twenty years. The shop, baiii close to the Maryland Hotel, was one of numercus
shops of this type concentrated ia the area (o cater to the considerable tourist n'ade.

The one-storv stucco building's chief design element is the red tile roof which slopes gent'y
toward the street paralleling the raised parapets at either end of the building. The center rocf
seciion is raised, slightly recessed and hlpprd and divides the facade into three sections. A
rendering in the Pasadena Star-News of Jaly &, 1922 shows quoins at the piers and corners and
five arches in the entryway. The storefronts were aitered in 1939 to their present configuration.

11, 21-27 8 El Molino Ave, Built: 1927-28
iockwood Building Architect: Frederick Kennedy, Jr.

This two-ctory reinforced concrete building which has an ornate cast stone facad: is one of the
premier cxan-xﬁ‘*s of Spanicsh Coloniul Revival commercial architecture in Fasadena. The
zxcepiionaily fine detailing includes stained glass windews in the transoni of each shop. 1he
{nierior preserves s gmf cany details, such a» ihe cast stone bas mehefs and fireolaces, which lend
the building special significance. Kennwy was a prominent lccal architect: arong other
significant bul‘mm s, he designed the First 2aptist Chureh in the Civic Center.

Faily tenanis i the buildieg included pmmw‘rn inierior Gecoraiors and dealers in fine chino ard
cuaiity art 7oods. The use a., 'wel. as the ijxé of the building cc rlcr*c.“c" the shopz in the
adjacent Pacadena Playhcuse swhich also fzaturea finc furniture a“d antiques, along with a
restagrant,
12, 35-75 50 El Molino Ave. Built: 1524-25, schuol bidg. 1535-38

Pasalena Playhouse Aichitects: Elmer Grey, Cyrid Eeanett

dividuaily listed in the National Register, the Pasadena Playhouse is an acchitcctural and
c.ﬂt i focal point of the historic district. A Spanish Colonial Revival building with Missicn
ei eris, the Piayhouse is centered arouid a :;ourzyard siclosed on three sides. Paved in
(3 gat()nb and surrounded by arcades, the central couriyard is raised above street lcvcl. Tpe
c:_»mpo:-;l irn of the building is asymmetrical anid informal, almost residential in scale. The stuceo



NS O )-SR LAVID NG s k18
(>-66)

United States Department of the interior
National Park Smwc“

National Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet

Section number ___7 Page:

Pasadena P!ayhduse Historic District
Los Angeles County, CA

walls are textured and irregular to resemble adcbe and masonry construction. The adiacent six-
story concrete school building was built in 1936.

The architect, Elmer Giey, also designed tae Beverly Hills Hotel and the Huntingion Library and
Art Gailery (m conjuncton with Myros Hunt.) In stye and function, the Playhouse relates to the
Civic Center scveral blocks to the east. Together with the central city churches and other
cemmercial buildings and institutions located within the vicinity of the Civic Center, the
Playhouse serves to expand the Civic Center conczp. (of significant public spaces and uses)
within the Pasadena Playhouse Historic District.

~

13 Pasadena Playhouse sign

This 1933 6 ,rces‘am.mg ncon sigr on & inetal poh, is set into the sidewaik on the east side of the

"5 mes Cadillac Hml ing. The sign anucunces the dirccuon of thie Pasadena Playhouse znd ties
these Spanish style 1620s buildings together. I: is Listed in the City of Pasadena Historic Sign

Inventory.

14, 105 §S. Bl Molino Ave. Buil.. 1506
Hesidence Archiicct: not known

This one-and-one-half story house was built in 1506 with elements of the Craftsman style. A
large hexagonal roofed dormer xs centered on the siccply pitched srmglcd roof. The house,
covered in wood sh hingles, coniains muliti-paned weod cesement and fixed windows. The house
was converted into five apartmcn:s in 1944, and 1emzins a good example of the former
residental nature of the district,

i3, 115 S. El Molkiro Ave. suiit: 1905 (Alteraions: 1937)
Perxing (Mary L.) House Architect: CW. Buchanan (oziginal)

"v g iy constructed in 1909 as a onc-and-a-nalf story, single-family residence, this building

exiensively remodeled in 1937 into a tnree-unit apartment house. The 1937 alierations
im!,;n : a distinctive Strzamline Moderne appearance e the building; only the first floor door and
window openings recail the original Craftsman style architecture. Particularly noteworthy are the
curvitinear form of the second fioor balcony railings and roof.
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The building is significant as a rare local example of a residential Streamline Moderne building.
Since its 1937 alieraticn, the building has been relatively unchanged.

16. 127 S. El Molino Ave. Builr: 1927
Mira Monte Hotel Builder: Foss Design and Building Company

In 1929 there were eighteen major hotels in Pasadena, to serve the considerable winter tourist
rade which had a large impact on the dev=lopment of the city. The Mira Monte Hotel, of mocest
size compared to the large hotels, is the only one to operate virtually intact as a residential hotel
from this era. Set back from the street on a slightly raised lawn, the hotel is a three-stery wood
frame tuilding, L-shaped in plan. It features such Mediterranean details as rough-cast stucco
walls, red tile roofs, arched openings, quoins, and a tower. The interior of the building has
sustained few changes and survives substantially intact.

On the rear ot of the hotel are twe non-contributing buildings. A 1908 garage was modified in
1927 ard 1945 to become a rustic cuitage. In 1962 a two-story frame and stucco residence with a
swimning peol was added adjacent to the Cottage.

17. 116 S. E! Mclino Ave. Buili: 1907
Webb (William Edgar) Residence Architect: John C. Austin

A twe-and-one-Lalf story mansion with a comer turret, the Webb House exhibits Arts and Crafts
and Ari Nouveau features. Tudor and mediievai elements troin the Arts and Crafts period include
half-timbering 1a the thizd story gables and towsr, Goihic arched windows and Tudor arched
entries. Leaded giass windows feature fluid Ast Nouveau designs on a geometrical background.
This houge, which was moved in 1924 frou- its original sitc at 65 South Madizon (at Grezn) and
converted o apartments, remains as a finc example of its style and as  representative example
of the rasidential character which was once found on all streess of the district.

18. 361-575 E. Green St. Built, 1628
Architect: Devid Ogilvie

A one-story, Spanish Colonial Revival style commercial biock, this brick building is oriented
towerd the corner of Green and Madison with a 45-cegree angled entry. Store fronts and entry
doors weie altered in the 1950s. However, significant detailing remains, including mottled blue
tile bulkkeads, transom grilles, cast stone eiements and terra cotta tile vents.



[R720- N XV 23 S ENEVES- 0 VA=Y YD TR VLA IO

(6-86)

United States Departmernt cof the Intenior
rlational Park Service

Nationa! Register of Historic Piaces
Continuation Sheei

Section number ___ 7 _ Page 12

Pasadena Playhouse Historic District
L.os Angeles County, CA

19. 589 E. Green St. Buiit 1928
Aichiiects: Louis Du Puger Millar and
Edward A. Hayes

Anchoring the corner, this small scale Spanish Colonial Revival brick building curves at the
corner, providing orientation towards both Green Street and Madison Avenue. Two stories in
height, its tile roof is capped by a small cupola. Three arched display windows facing the corner
are separated by fluted columns with capitals. Doorways on either side of these windows are
a;%hed and decorated with scroll-like ornamentation, with deeply recessed quatrefoil windows
above.

20.  593-597 E. Green St. Built: 1929
Architect: Louis Du Puger Millar

Thiz is a two-story Monterey Colonial Revival commeercial building of brick constraction. The
sirect facade is symmetrical with thc ground floor articulated by an arched opening flanked by
targe ravlti-paned display windows. A wroug‘n iron gate is sct into the arch and, waithin the entry,
stairs lead up o the second floor. Abovs the displa; windows are diamond-shaped leaded glass
t-ansoms set between wooder. spiadies. The sccond floor has a central pair of French docrs,
flankea cn each side by two paure of shuttered casement windows. The buiilding has a gabled tile
:‘oof d‘:vith extended end walls. In the early 1930s, cichitecis Millar and Hayes had offices in this
buitiding,

21. L0 EL Green St Built: 1940
Architect: H.B, Traver

This simple one-story reinforced brick building relates weil 1o the scale of the other tuldng

the block. A recessed entry with double panc ed doors is on the west c1(!3, and 2 large muhx-
rancd windcow with brick buikincad is on the easi. .\ row of vood-framed fransorm windows is
abcve. The facads is siuceo, with comner fluted pilasters defining the ends of the building.

v

22, €33 E. Green St Buile: 1540
Axchitect: Harold Bissner

This buildiug, originaliy a bakery, is a two-story hrick Colonial Revival “rewhouse”. The side-
gabmd roof is set beiween extended wall parapets, The second story has three six-over-six doubie



Y P VI 7R T

NP O TR oo @
(8-66)

United States Department of the Intericr
National Park Service

Naticnal Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet

Section number __7 __ Page 13

Pasadena Playhouse Historic District
Los Angeles County, CA

hung windows with wood shutters. The ground floo: has a large arched opening on the east and
two arched multi-paned windows o the west side. A wronght iron gate encloses the recessed
entry and vines cover the lower portion of the building. This structure is one of several
contributing period revival buildings on this block of Green Street.

23. 605-609 E. Green St. Buili: 1931
Architect: Theodore L. Fletsch

A striking facade of shiny black 4-by-4 ceramic tile keynotes this two-story Art Dece building.
Corner projecting piers frame the building. The ground floor has large idisplay windows with
tiled bulkheads on the cast side and a recessed entry on the west. The original owner designed

jewelry with butterfly motifs which accounts for the butterfly theme used in decorative elements

throughcut the building, including the wrought iron gate to the second fioor apartment stairway,
ana the leaded glass transoms above the second story windows.

24, O55E.Green St. Built: 1925
Symes Cadillac Architects: Marstor, Van Peli and Maybury

Now known as Jacob Maarse Florist, this is a one-story Spanish Colonial Revival design. The
buildizg is tysical of the luxuricus avto showrooms ccmmon in 192Cs Pasadena, cthers of which
reman on Colorado Boulevard. The architects also designed the Paciric Asia Museum as weil as
many oiher ;mmﬁca«t Pasadena buiidings. A photograph of the original builﬁ_%ng shows parapet
detail: which have been covered by the corner sign of remcved and a tile door frame which is
covered by mcial casing. These areas could casily be restered, greatly enhancing the appearance
of the burlding.

25. €50 E. Green St Built: 1230
Union Qii Ce. Buiider: Union 01 Co.

A one-giery mesorTy building used as a garage and a sreail Spanish Coleriz! Revival gas station
are located at this corner lot. The garage, located at the west end of the lot, is L shascu in plan
and hes 2 Sat 100f with low parapets. The Green Sireet facade has wide expanses of industrial
metal-sash windows. .\;m >ral large openings for servicing cars are located ﬂ'ong the east and
north facades. The gas station is ioca ted at the oppusite corner of the ot and contains a

reestanding, rr'etai-" .,me canopy with a kipped tile roof (added in 1535), The adjacent brick gas
tation office has a gabled tile voof and large plaie glass windows.



SRE A2 ORI puUmIinaTa B I
(A-uo)

United States Department ot the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet

Section number ___ 7 Page _ 14

P AL

Pasadena Playhouse Historic District
Los Angeles County, CA

This building is a good example of the adaptation of a period revivai (Spanish Colonial) style to a
utilitarian use. It is also notable as &n intact, fairly early exampic of the gas station building type.

26. €00 E. Green St. Built: 1925
Pacific Telephone Company Architect: John and Donald Parkinson

This three-story, Beaux Arts style office building is constructed cf reinforced concrete, with a
granite base and terra cotta facing. Like other buiidings un Creen Street, it is oriented toward the
corner with a 45-degree bay positicning the main entrance directly at the corner. Pilasters define
bays of regularly spaced recessed steel windows on: the two main ¢levations.

In the early years of the 20th century, there were two rival tvlepbone companies in Pasadena: the
Sunset Phene Co. and the Home Telephons and Telegraph Co. The Home, viuch was originally
honsed on Nortir Raymond, eventaally woi: oui over the Sunse! and built this office building in
1925 as part of their expansion. In 1933, the Home Company 1aciged with Pacific Telephone to
create the system still in use toaay. The building iz currently undergoing seismic retrofit and
rehabilitation.

27. S50 E.Creen St. Built: 1908 09; Xeadiag room, 1333
First Church of Christ Scientist Architect: Franklin P. Ramnbam

Marsicn and Van Pel: (:933)

This 1s a Classical Revival structure of reinforced concrete withh a sivcce finish, Guilt in a cross-
axiai plan and surmounted by on imposing copper dome. Three sides of the bmm.ng, have
porticos with lonic columns and Cerinthizn pilasters. This was the firct church rc be constructed
of reinforced concrete in Pasadena. The landmark deme is visible {rom mwuvch of the downtown
areq,

Adjacent to the chwch, on the Green Street side, is a smaller reacing roora of concrete and brick,
:’vqxgned in a compativle Classical Revival styh,.

28. €3 N. Madisor Ave. Built: 1925
Professional Building Architects: Dodd and Richards

‘ ‘loor {new

An & ght-sﬁry office building in the Gothic Revival style. The iws-story groun
form of a Gothic arch.

storefronts in 1958} houses sh::ps and provides a tall grand entrance in the f
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Strong vertical lines (simuiated butiresses) lead the eye upward to the parapet which is accented
by a series of decorated pmnacle The structure is reinforced concrete with cast stone ornament
and trim. The adjoining parking lot was established in 1930 and is landscaped with holly bushes
and benches.

The Professional Building, designed and built for physicians and gentists, is Pasadena's only
example of Gothic Revival office building architecture (z style popuiar iz Eastern cities such as
New York and Chicago).

29, 235 N. Madison Ave. Built: 1924
Barcelona Apartments Architect: The Littleton Company

An L-shaped four-story stucco apartment building with a red tile gable roof. The main entrance
in the corner of the L is marked by flanking columns and a panel of fuliage designs in cast stone
relief above the docrway. Additional Spanish Coloinial Revival details include deeply recessed
casemen: windows and recessed arches above upper story windows. The L-shaped plan of the
building affords the opportinity for a spacicus lawn.

This was the first coopcmu vely owned apartment building in Pasadena. Opmcd i 1924, the 31
units criginally soid for {rom $2,800 0 $13,700. The Fasadena Star-News of january ,16, 1924
rcpf‘rfea on this method of cwning a residence which was new to Pusadc“a and its success at the
Barcelona:

Ths plan of occupant ownershio was evolved as a means of soiving the high rent
questions. Monthly payment equaled half of what ons wouid have to pay out in
restin most cases in a similar onit owned by a landlord.

The first enterprice of this kind here has met with success. The leg2l Departmeni
of the Title Insumnce and Trust Company, Los Angeles, which has beer handling
ihe legal cdetails, told us that there hac been devzioped in the case of the Barcelona
Apartments the most workable and the most efficacious scheme for acquiring
cwiership that they have yet encountered.
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30. 90-104 N. Madison Ave, Buili: 1932
Architect: not knowrn

An office complex containing a U-shaped building wrapped around a two-story central structure,
designed with restrained Spanish Colonial Revival detailing. Upon the success of the neaxby
Professicnal Building, the north and south wings of the "U" were built as medical offices in
1932. A two-room addition az the rear was built in 1939, The front portion {(accaded breezeway)
was buiit in 1956. The central building was originally a residence but was converted into medical
cffices in 1940. A long garage building is at the rear of the site.

31. 112 N. Madison Ave, Built: 1922
Residence Architect: not known

This English Cottage Revival residence was built in 1922, prior to the conctruction of the
Frofessional Buiiding in 1925, which brought arn influx of office use to Madisen Avenue. The
wie-and-one-half story house khas a steeply pitched, cross-gabled roof with 4 sraali gabled
dormer. The exterior has a stucco finish and wood casement windows. The Louse was remodeled
{or office use in 1962 and a fla* rocfad 600 square foot addition buii: in 1868,

2. 120 N. Madison Ave, Ruilt: 1909
Bames (Elia M.} House Axchitect: Sylvanus 8. Marston

‘This residence is the earliest known building by 3ylvanus B. Marston, a »otzble Pasadona
architect who designed public and vesidentiel bund;n% in 1aany styles including the Pasadena
Atletc Club, YMCA and Jacob Maarse Building. “The one-and-one-hait story shingle and
stucce house has a long, sioping clipped gabie roof and a deepty recessed porch accented by
izge drum stuccoed columns supporting the rorch roof. A large gabled dormis s bregks the of
lle av the center of the front (west) facade. French doots lead oui onto a small norch in the
(OTrMEr.

The house was converted into offices in 1963. A broad iawn and plantings preserve the
rosidential character of the building.
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3. 150 N. Madison Ave, Built: 1924
Scottisk Rite Cathedral Architect: Joseph . Blick

A monumenta! Moderne structure in glistening white, the Scottish Rite Cathedral is a design of
sxm;:z, vertical planes accented by ochre cast stone panels around the entrance. These panels with
their projecting grooved buttresses further emphasize the verticality of the design. Cast stone
arrovs feathers flanking each of the three deeply recessed entry doors and the enormous cast stone
Qiph;‘ xes on each side of the entrance stairs are the only ornamenial relief in the geometric

li,A

As the meeting place of one of the oldest fraiernal orders in Pasadena (organized in 1893), the
Qn tiish Rite Cathcdral represents a long continuous tradition. The architect, Joseph I. Rlick, had

a long Pasadena career, beginning in 1895 and continuing until the 1940s. Blick also designed
t5e Srar-News Building within this historic district.

25, 1721 S. Madison Ave. Builr: 1938
Architect: not known

Tris mined-use buiiding was built to house two apartiaents and foir stores in 1938, The two-
stery brick building has two ene-story protruding wings which flank a stnall central courtyard.
Crcorial Revival drraﬂmg includes classical cornice trim, wood multi-pansd double- hung and
naseineni windows and wood shutiers. The scale and style of the buiiding relate well to the rest
of the district, particulaly to the other peried revival buiidings aiong nearby Green Strest.
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Non-coniibuiing Buildings

497 E. Colorado Blvd. Chul Jin Martial Aris
505 E. Colorado Blvd. Community Bank

£62 4. Colorado Blvd. Zinke's Shoe Repair
600-6190 E. Colorado Blvd.  United Artists Theater
615 E. Celorado Blvd. BIE Furniture

572 E. Green St. Office Building

24 3. Madison Ave. The White Hut

52 S. Qakiand Ave. Office Building

1949
1949
1978
1931
1930
1961
1978
1963

The majonty of the above buildings are considered non-contribuiing to the Pasadena Playhouse
Historic Distict due to their construction outside of the period of significance (defined as 1906-
1¢44). These buildings are not architecturally or historically significant in the context cf the
cistrict, hiowever, two buildings which fall within the period of significance (600-510 E.
Zoloradc Elvd., United Artisis Theater; and 615 E. Colorado Blvd., BIF Furniture) are not
incinded as contributing due to extensive alterations and lack of integrity. Tae United Arists
Theater iy described further in the foilowing section. Photographs of all non-contributing

Miitinge are included with this nominztion.
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600-610 E. Colorado Built: 1931

United Artists Theater Architects: Bennett and Haskell

This theater, built in 1931, was remodeled in 1960. In its current state, this is classified as a non-
contributing building. However, the original Art Deco architectural elements of the theater and
shopfronts currently covered could be restored. Historic photographs exist to aid in the
restoration. Since this building has architectural and historical significance, a brief history is
included.

The Pasadena Star -News announced on January 25, 1921 that the "erection of a United Artists
Theater... was assured today by the signing of a lease between the United Artists of California
Film Corporation and the Colorado Madison Syndicate, holders of the property. The new
Pasadena theater will be one of a chain of United Artists motion picture theaters to be erected in
Californiz." This theater "will afford the United Artists an entrance into Pasadena which they
charge has heretofore been denicd them. It is, from their standpoint, one of a large number of
theaters to be built so that the corporation may become an exhibitor as well as a producer of
feature pictures.”

The follov/ing reference is from "Walker and Eisen: Twenty Years of Los Angeles Architecture,
1620-1940" found in Southern California Quarterly 446 (1964), p. 371-391.

At the beginning of the 30s Walker and Eisen were commissioned for a chain of
theaters by the United Artists (U/A) Corporation. The commission came through
Joseph Schenk, U/A executive who had alsc been instrumental in awarding the
contract for the Texaco Building Theater. The chain of U/A Theaters built
throughout California were patterned almost without variation after a model
established by the studio. These theaters proved to be quite different from the
mevie palaces of a few shori years before. The design now reflected a new kind of
popular taste. Suddenly everything was blue mirrors and chromium stair rails;
light fixtures were shards of jagged frosted glass, and cubism was espoused by the
carpet makers.

The cost of the theater was $230,000. The 900-seat theater was "modernistic throughout" with
black and silver decorations. a rendering of the theater was published in the Pasadena Star-New's
of May 1, 1931, and shows a very omate Art Deco building with chevrons etc.

Further research is required to determine whether the Pasadena United Artists Theater was the
first of the United Artists chain and the "model" or prototype for the modern U/A theaters that
fcllowed, or, if 1t was simply the first in the Pasadena area.
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The architects, Albert R. Walker and Percy Eisen, also designed the Fine Arts Building (1924)
and the Oviatt Building (1928) in Los Angeles. They were known for their adaptations of the
Renaissance, Romanesque, Gothic and Spanish Colonial styles. The firm designed the Texaco
Buildir:g on Broadway in Los Angeles in 1927, which contained a United Artists Theater. They
moved toward simplicity in design and materials with their industrial buildings (Braun
Corporation, 1931), and the use of concrete, exhibited in the design of the Pasadena United
Artists Theater, played an important role in their stylistic change.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Pasadena Playhouse Historic District developed throughout the
19208 as a major concentration of retail, business and cultural
activity in thz City of Pasadena. The development of the district
illustrates the beginning of the eastward growth of the City of
Pasadena. For its role in the expansion of urban activity beyond
the pre-1920 Cantral Business District, the Pasadena Playhouse
Historic District meets Criterion A as representing significant
events in the history of Pasadena, under the context of community
planning and development, and commerce. The significant role of
the Pasadena Playhouse in the performing arts field also qualifies
under Criterion A. The district also meets National Register
Criterion C in the area of architecture as containing many
significant examples of period architectural styles.

Pasadepa’s growth and development; 1900-1930

The expansion of the city of Pasadena’s population, industrial and land bases are interconnected.
"Tie population of Pasadena in 1900 was a little over 9,000. By 1910 the city’s population tripled
to over 3C,000. The city’s acreage doubled as a result of the annexation of North Pasadena in
1904 and East Pasacena in 1906. It continued to grow with the annexation of San Rafael Heights
and Linda Vista {1914), Pasadera Heights (1916), Annandale (1917) and the Arrovo Addition
(1919). While Pasadena’s early growth was characterized by the annexation of undeveloped and
scini-cevelopsd land to the west and north, the thrust of subsequent annexation activity in the
1920s vias primarily fo the east with its flat developable lands. Seventy-seven annexations in all
had combined to bring Pasadena’s total area to 23,009 square miles.

The boundaries of the city of Pasadena as incorporated in 1886 were 2s ollows: tie Arroyo Seco
on the wast; a line just past Lake Avenue on the east; Columbia Street or the south; and
Mourntain Sireet on the north. While all of these boundaries have been enlarged over time, it is
the major easiward expansion over time which is most visible.

The Arroyo Seco still acts as a natural, geological western boundary, with the City of Pasadena
now incorporating the houses on either side of the valley. The southern 2dge of Columbia Street
Las also remained surprisingly firm as it continues to be part of the southern boundary. This is
partially due o the strong comni.:nity of South Pasadena; ence Pasadena incorporated, they were
soon to fcllow in getting a city charter. The northern boundary has also not increased by much;
toduy it reaches Wocedbury Road and is met by the City of Altadena. Th= only truly cpen edge of
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Pasadena, the eastern boundary has increased the most over the years. With its first limit set
because of the lack cof residents beyond Lake Avenue, the eastern edge eventually expanded
beyond the original limits of Rancho San Pasqual with its new limit at Michillinda Avenue,
meeting the neighboring cities of Sierra Madre and Arcadia.

While Pasadena’s City fathers were busy adding to their domain, the business sector was
continuing to grow and change. Industry flourished in the Los Angeles region after World War I,
and the urban form for which the area is krown began taking shape. Industrial suburbs offered
employment opportunities; and separate residential suburbs emerged. In 1910, 88 industries that
employed 500 people in Pasadena were listed. By 1920, Pasadena, with a population of 45,000,
had 1,000 people emrloyed in the city’s 191 industries. Strengthened by increasing demand,
property values rose dramatically during this time. In the 1920s the Chamber of Commerce
instituted a campaign to attract industry to the city. The Chamber sought to secure only “clean
industries” such as textil :s, clothing, prin*ers and machine tool manufacturing. It touted the city’s
low electricity rates and its stable work force as enticements. By 1930 Pasadena’s population had
grown to 76,000; yet the city’s industrial base had decreased to 150 companies.

The enactment of a city zoning ordinance in 1922 led to both regulation and expanded
opportunities for the development of business and industry in Pasadena. The zoning ordinarce
had a significant impact on the commercial development of the Pasadena Playhouse Historic
Disirict. Under the new ordinance, the entire area which is now contained in the District was
zoned either “Commercial District” or “Third Residence District” (which permitted apartment
buildings and hotels). This zoning permitted areas once reserved for single-family residences (for
exampie, North Madison Avenue, South El Molino) to expand into office, retail or apartment
uses. The Pasadena Star-News on September 23, 1930 described the significance of the city’s

first rzal zoning ordinance, passed in 1922. Prior to this, “piece meal” zoning had
teen resorted to for the protection of certain sections of the city as residential
neighborhoods; but it became increasingly clear that the courts did not look with
faver on that type of zoning, hence Pasadena, in Passing a comprehensive
ordinance, was among those cities which were pioneering in progress.

In 1922 Pasadena had twenty-eight miles of business frontage for a population of
51,530...since 1922, we have added fifteen miles of additional frontage to the
business zone.
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hronol nd historical dev ment of i

In the early 1900s, Colorado and Fair Oaks was the heart of downtown Pasadena. Development
on Colorado Street and around the intersection of Moline (as El Molino Avenue was then called)
consisted mostly of single-family houses set back considerably from the street right of way. As
originally platted in the 1870s, the major east-west streets were Walnut Street, Colorado Street
and California Street. Subsequently sticets called First Street, Herkimer and Hull appear on the
maps but they do not align with each other and appear as individual biock-long streets or alleys.

An article titled "Oranges Once Grew Along Colorado”, in the Pasadena Star-News of August
19, 1925, gives a brief historical overview and captures the feeling of the area included in the
Pasadena Playhouse Historic Distr.ct prior to the development of the 1920s. The description
centers on the site of the Star-News Building, a contributing structure located at 525 E. Colorado
Boulevard:

Where the new home of the Star-News now stands was once a part of the Lake
Vineyard Land and Water Company tract, subdivided in 1876 by B. D. Wilson.
The viilage of Pasadena 2t that time lay entirely west of Fair Oaks Avenue, and
the opening of 2500 acres of land east of Fair Qaks by Mr. Wilson in 1876 marked
the first expansion of the community beyond the borders of the first colony tract.

Pasadena in these early days was closely surrounded by various kinds of ranches,
citrus groves predominating. The site of the Star-News Building was once
included in an orange orchard which bordered Colorado Street at that point.

A quarter of a century ago {1900], Colorado Street east of Marengo Avenue was
one of the exclusive residential districts of the city and many fine homes were
erccted along the wide avenue, their attractive gardens adding to the beauty of this
part of the city. About 25 years ago, Charles Frost, then president of the Los
Angeles Pressed Brick Company, bought the present site of the Star-News and
erected a large two-story house which was one of the "show places" of the
community...The Frost home, a reminder of the days that were gone, was wrecked
10 make room for the new home of the Star-News.

According to this article, the location of the main post office at Garfield Avenue in September
1915 started the rapidly growing movement of larger business houses eastward. The Star-News
reported in September, 1915, that on Colorado east of Marengo, "new stores, apartment houses,
and office buildings have sprung up if not quite by magic at least surprisingly.” This movement
took on full force with the construction of the new Civic Center to the east of the Central
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Business District. The Civic Center Plan, approved by a bond issue in 1923, called for
construction of three buildings: a city hall, library and civic auditorium. These joined the already
existing Post Office, YMCA and YWCA. With the creation of the Civic Center, Pasadena's
commercial center continued to move easiward along Colorado Boulevard.

Prior to 1922, Green Street, another important artery in the district, did not extend eastward
beyond Los Robles Avenue. The City's effort to create a secondary east-west street which would
provide improved traffic circulation in the downtown led to the extension of Green Street
eastward from Euclid to Hill in 1923. This extension triggered the commercial growth of Green
Street. "Green Street, since its reconstruction,” reported the Star-News in 1926, has acquired a
new impoertance and now carries a greatly increased traffic." One of the first buildings to be
constructed was the Home Telephone Company building in 1925. Other buildings followed as
Green Street became a fashionable retail and office area.

By 1931, as shown on a Sanborn Map, only a few of the old houses which formerly
predominated in the district remained. The area was developed commercially with larger building
footprints and no setbacks. The district by then had a variety of new active uses including two
new movie theaters, the Pasadena Playhouse and new retail shops. Most of the significant
buildings of the district existed by this year. Green Street had been completed and Colorado
Boulevard was known as the "Street of a Thousand Palms” due to the Queen Palms that lined its
length. A few vears earlier, inn 1926, the Star-News had reported: "Intensification of the use of
business properties on Coiorado Street is building up metropolitan characteristics on the street .

Also. Grzen Street, since its reconstruction, has acquired a new importance and now carries a
greatly increased traffic.. .Eight new merchants in the past year between Los Robles and El
Molino, the greaiest number of ary block on Colorado...[Real Estate] sales have been made
withia the past six months in almost every block on the strest [with] the largest single sale at [.os
Robles, and the greates® nuribzar between Los Robles and El Molino.”

In the subsequent decade the GGueen Pa:ms disappeared when Colorado Boulevard was widenzd.
Herkimer and Hull wer: cornected and renamed Union Street. The scale of new development in
the surrounding area substantally ircreased, yet the scale and character of buildings which
distir.guish the Pasadena Playhouse Histori~ Tstrict boundariss remained substantially intact.

The movement of buzinesses castward from the Ceniral Business District during the important
years of the early to mid-1920s was noted by businessmen ard real estate developers, as well as
journalists, as the events occu:red. "Los Robles and Colorado continues to be the focal point of
real estate and building activity in the business district...the entire south side of Colorado,
betw:en Los Robles and Oakland, is a sce:ie of activity,” reported the Star-News on August 19,

i
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1922. "Business building work near Colorado corner is now impressive. Many firms will be
housed there."

A 1923 article by C.V. Sturdevant (developer of 2 major building on Colorado between Marengo
and Euclid in 1909) is titled "East Coloradc Street Has Set Rapid Pace for Other Sections in
Development."” The first-hand view is subtitled "Extraordinary growth of business and values on
main thoroughfare is outlined by one of first to see its possibilities."

When I came to the country village of Pasadena in 1886, business was practically
confined to Fair Oaks Avenue, and to Colorado Street between Raymond and
Delacey with the general belief and prediction that Pasadena business would
follow the line to Los Angeles, chicfly on South Fair Oaks with some overflow
conceded to South Raymond.

Those who predicted that business would go east cn Colorado beyond the Santa
Fe track were considered visionary and impractical.

The fifty-foot lot on the south side of Colorado, just west of the corner of
Marengo, was used as a nursery sales ground and went begging at $50 per foot. A
twenty-five foot lot, a part of which is included in the present post office site, sold
cnly a few years ago at $100 per foot.

The eastern movement of trade and business and the developrment of eastern Coloraco Boulevard
and the suzrounding area throughout the 1920 had a substantial impact on the form and image of
the community. D.M. Linnard, owner and deveioper of a stie at Colorado and Madison expressed
his gprimistic view in "Would Build Shops For Business" (Pasadena Star-News, December 26,
192.1):

2 believe in a great future for Coloradc Street as a boulevard of wonderful shops, a
cecond Rue e la Paix that will be even more attractive to our own people than the
tfamous fashion mart of Paris ...

One of the advantages of Colorado Sireet that wil: contribute to its popularity as
one of the greatest streets of attractive shops in the country, is that it will be free
from the congestion of a closely built-up business section. Churches with their
spacious grounds and extensive frontage will aid the motor shoppers with ample
parking space in business hours, and that is one of the first considerations with
many in this day of difficult traffic prcblems.

'
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A street of wonderful shops, such as Colorado Street is destined to be, with the
transition already well under way, will be attractive not only to residents of our
city, but to the people of Los Angeles, surrounding towns, and to the winter and
sumrmer visitors, who will continue to come to Pasadena in added numbers --
many of them to become permanent residents -- and to contribute greatly to its
growth and prosperity.

In commenting upon the development of East Colorado Street in 1923, Clifton J. Platt, organizer
and president of the East Colorado Street-Lake Avenue Improvement Association, gave his
personal history and opinion:

Establishing business in Pasadena in 1899 I began the study of the expansion of
this city, realizing ghat here was a city bound to grow. That. the cities of Southern
California are growing, moving objects, no one doubts.

The business district of Pasadena was centered around Fair Oaks and Colorado
Street. The district has expanded with the years. I purchased the old Brockway
residence at Euclid and Colorado Street and built the first brick business building
in that section, east of Garfield Avenue. In a few years this building was sold at a
handsome profit.

This preface is only given as a brief history, showing that many years ago I had
come to the conclusion that Pasadena's business area was moving eastward on
account of natural causes. Colorado Street absorbed the iarger part of that growth
because it is the line of least resistance, and the growth [is] being distributed both
north and south of this line. In other words, business goes to meet its patrons.

During the last few years new firms have opened many up-to-date stores east of
Euclid Avenue. You will find more than a dozen fashionable establishments east
of Los Robles Avenue, some of these handling exclusive lines of the finest
merchandise. It is no longer necessary to go down town for all shopping, and the
stores closer at hand are being well patronized.

All sections of Pasadena are expanding. It is a fact that a larger part of this growth
is eastward and will continue eastward because of the extensive open areas of land
in that direction inviting the homemaker thither. Pasadena is destined to be a big
city.
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The eastward move of businesses is clearly visible in the case of the Warner Building, a
contributing structure at 469-483 E. Colorado, built in 1927. The highly publicized opening of
the attractive Art Deco building contained the following example: "Another concern in the
Warner Building which has been kept on the move because of the changing trend of business in
the shopping area of Pasadena is the Fred T. Huggins Company, shoes.” This company started in
1901 at 149 E."Colorado, moved to 33 E. Colorado and then to 345 E. Colorado, before settling
at 469 E. Colorado.

George A. Clark Co. opened a small shop in 1904 at 14 South Fair Oaks Avenue. "From its first
location the company moved to 30 East Colorado Street and then as the trend of business moved
eastward, 84 East Colorado Street was believed to be a more desirable location. After that the
[shop] was located in the attractive store at 265 East Colorado Street, just west of the post office,
but when Mr. Clark heard of the proposed Warner Building to be erected in the midst of what he
considers the better shopping district the decision was made [to move once again.]"

By 1927, local businessman W.T. Jefferson made the suggestion to change the name of
Pasadena's "most luminous bisecting artery" from Colorado Street to Colorado Boulevard. The
idea of a "grand boulevard” as a continuous grand ceremonial route through the City achieved
suceess partially through the concentration of cu'tural, retail and business establishments in the
Pasadena Playhouse Historic District.

The Pasadena Playhouse

The Pasadena Playhouse is the oldest theatrical producing organization in the western United
Siazes. It dates buck to 1916, when Gilmor Brown and his Savoy Stock Company moved into the
"Old Savoy" on North Fair Oaks Avenue, replacing burlesque with the plays of Shakespeare,
Ibgen, Barrie and Shaw. The Community Playhouse Association (later called Pasadena Playhouse
Association) was incorporated October 17, 1918. When the Old Savoy was condemned by the
Fire Departmert, the Community Players raised funds in a door-to-door campaign for purchase
of land and the building of a new home.

Accerding to the Playhouse architect, Elmer Crey, the construction of the new building was a
strong matter of civic pride, which coincided with the building of the nearby Civic Center:

The associaiion had a large membership with strong public sentiment in back of it,
and its building enterprise was being watched by similar bodies ir many parts of
the country. Pasadena was also about to have a new Civic Center with a fine new
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City Hall, a Library and an Auditorium, and the enthusiasm aroused in connection
with these enterprises also doubtless lent a contributory hand.

On May 18, 1925, the new Playhouse opened to the public. In 1928, with the world premiere of
Eugene O'Neill's "Lazarus Laughed” gaining for it a position of prominence in theatrical circles,
the Playhouse Association opened its School of Theatre Arts, and the first class was graduated in
1930. Many prominent professional actors and Hollywood stars achieved their early training at
the Playhouse, which was the first American theater to have staged ail of Shakespeare's 37 plays.
In 1937, the Pasadena Playhouse was named by the California State Legislature as the "State
Theatre of California." "The Playhouse...earned its global reputation for expanding the
boundaries of the American theater,” reported the New York Times upon the building's
rehabilitation in 1986.

The Cultural Heritage Committee of the City of Pasadena, on August 20, 1969, recommended the
Cultural Heritage Landmark designation of the Pasadena Playhouse as an institution of cultural
importance. This was the first landmark designation approved by the City. The Playhouse was
listed in the National Register in 1975 and as a Certified Rehabilitaticn Project in 1986.

In addition to its renowned cultural significance, the Playhouse had an important role in the
financial success of the surrounding area. Conversely, the shops at the Playhouse would play a
signit cant role in the financing of the building, as reported in the Star-News in "Community
Playhouse Loomirng" (June 20, 1921):

Plans call for a frontage of about 160 feet, preterably cn Colorado Street. Three
stores on each side of a wide entrance into a spacious court, extending 200 feet
back to the theater tuilding, would help to finance the upkeep of the structure.
Other store spaces, i two stories, facing the interior court, would add sl\t.ill more to
the revenue.

The shops also clearly had a stylistic iniluence on further devclopment in the Pasadena
Playhouse Historic District, ¢:s California Scuthland repested upon the opening of the Playhouse:

Or. either side of the patio which opens toward the east are shops where the artists
and craftsmen of the town will dispiay their products, and those who cannot find
roora there are crowding this eastern section of Colorado Street and El Molino for
stere rooms. It is to be hoped that builders on nearby lots will keep to a two-story
height and leave the: decorative tower...to dominate. Pasadena can have this, her
own original shopping district in the Pasadena style.
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ite 66 and the role of th ile in shapin i

Route 6€, recognized as early as 1929 as a "famous highway" and the "Main Street of America”,
traversed Colorado Boulevard through the Pasadena Playhouse Historic District on its way
through Pasadena. Route 66 was the major highway linking Chicago and Los Angeles before the
age of the interstate highway system. Starting at the corner of Jackson Boulevard and Michigan
Avenue in Chicago, it ran 2,200 miles to the corner of Santa Monica Boulevard and Ocean
Avenue in Santa Monica. When it was completed in 1926, Route 66 entered Pasadena from the
east on Foothill Boulevard, traveling west to Hill Street, turning south on Hill to Colorade
Boulevard, west on Colorado to Fair Oaks Avenue, and then proceeding south ont Fair Oaks
Avenue into South Pasadena. With the completion of the Pasadena Freeway in 1941, the route
was changed to enter Pasadena on the east at Colorado Boulevard, to proceed west on Colorado
to Arroyo Parkway and then south on Arroyo Parkway into the Pasadena Freeway.

Ultimateiy, Route 66 became a symbol of American restlessness, mobility and opportunity.
Memorialized in literature, song and folklore, hundreds of thousands of travelers got their "kicks
on Route 66." Both the original route and the post-1941 Route 66 :ncluded the portion of
Colorade Boulevard located within the Pasadena Piayhouse Historic District. The automobile
reinforced Colorado Boulevard as Pasadena's Main Street, with its commercial vitality and its
image as a ceremonial corridor.

Both cormmercial and residential development in the Pasadena Playhouse Historic District were
shaped by the automobile. By the 1920s most strects were seen primarily as arteries for motor
vehicles. Prior to the auto, residential developments had to be located relatively close to public
transportation lines. By the 1920s more people could fulfill the ideal of life in a single-family
home in a neighborhood of detached houses, private yards and tree-lined streets. Thus, the new
mobility combined with the fast encroachment of commercial uses contributed to the declining
residential nature of the district. Those that stayed on lived in newer urban types of housing,
exemplified by the cooperative Barcelona Apartments, or in the cld mansions now subdivided
into apartments. These residents enjoyed the urban amenities of the district as described with
optimism in a 1924 brochure for the Barcelona Apartments: "Just one block from Colorado Street
and close to ail busiress, social, religious and amusement activities... There will be a decided
increase ia land values in the very near future." -

Throughout the 19405 and 1950s, the hub of commercial activity shiftec further eastward along
Colorade Boulevard to Lake Avenue and the surrounding area. The presence of notable
commercial and cultural institutions, however, assured the continuing significance of the
Pasadena Playhouase Historic District. The district merits recognition and preservation for its
major rcle in the urban development of the local community as well as its significant
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architectural assemblage, containing numerous individually distinguished buildings, many of
which are by important local architects.
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

The district boundaries are indicated as the dotted line or the accompanying base map entitled
"Pasadena Playhouse Historic District.”

VERBAL BOUNDARY JUSTIFICATION

The boundary includes those contiguous properties which are considered contributing to the
historical and architectural significance of the district.



NPS Form 10-900-a OMD Approval No. 10240018
(0-69)

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet

. Photogr 1
Section number © ap}Bage

Pasadena Playhouse Historic District

Los Angeles County, California

PHOTOGRAPHER: Barry Kyler, Thirtieth Street Architects, Inc.
DATE OF PHOTOGRAPH: June, 1993

LOCATION OF ORIGINAL NEGATIVE: Urban Conservation Archives, City of Pasadena, Ca.
DESCRIPTION OF VIEWS:

1. 469-483 E. Colorado Blvd., Looking north.

2. 489 E. Colorado Blvd., Looking north.

3. 525 E. Colorado Blvd., Looking northeast.

4a. There is no photograph number 4a.

4b.  There is no photograph hnmbcr 4b.

5a.  587-611 E. Colorado Blvd., Looking northeast.
5b. 26-44 N. Madison Ave., Looking east.

6. 592 E. Colorado Blvd., Looking wazst.

7. 52G-528 E. Colorado Blvd., Looking southeast
8. 500 E. Colorado Blvd., Looking southwest.

9. 472-482 E. Colorad» Blvd., Looking south.
10.  464-468 E. Colorado Blvd., Looking south.
11, 21-278S. Ei Molino Ave., Locking west.

12, 35-39 S. El Molino Ave., Looking northwest.
13.  Pasadena Playhouse Sign, Looking west.

14, 105 S. El Molino Ave., Looking west.
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115 S. El Molino Ave., Looking west.
127 S. El Molino Ave., Looking west.
116 S. El Molino Ave., Looking east.

561-575 E. Green St., Looking northwest.

589 E. Green St., Looking northeast
593-597 E. Green St., Looking north,
601 E. Green St., Looking north.

603 E. Green St., Looking north.
605-609 E. Green St., Looking north.
655 E. Green St,, Looking northwest.
650 E. Green St., Looking south.
650 E. Green St., Looking south.
600 E. Green St., Looking southeast.
530 E. Green St., Looking southeast.
S5CE. Gréen St., Looking south.

65 N. Madison Ave., Looking north.

83 N. Madison Ave., Looking northwest.

90-104 N. Madison Ave., Looking northeast.

112 IN. Madison Ave., Locking east.

1.20 N. Madison Ave., Looking east.

150 N. Madison Ave., Looking southeast.
131 S. Madiscn Ave., Looking northwest.
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35.  Looking northwest towards 400 block E. Colorado Blvd.
36. Looking southeast towards 400 block E. Colorado Blvd.
37.  Looking southwest towards Pasadena Playhouse on S. El Molino Ave.
38.  Looking northwest towards Pasadena Playhouse or: S. El Molino Ave.
39.  Looking northwest towards 600 block E. Green St.
40.  Looking northeast towards 500 block S. Madison & 600 block E. Green St.
41.  Looking southeast towards 500 block S. Oakland Ave.
42.  Looking north towards 500 block S. Oakland Ave.
n-Coniributi ildi
43. 497 E. Colorado Blvd., Looking north.
44, 505 E. Colorado Bivd., Looking north.
45. 392 E. Colorado Blvd., Looking south.
46. 610 E. Colorade Blvd., Looking south.
47. 615 E. Colerado Blvd., Looking north.
48. 572 E. Greer: St., Looking northwest.
49. 26 S. Madison Ave., Looking south.
50. 52 8. Oakland Ave., Looking northeast.



J L

J L

—

M

l

-LTlE
—

1
rmmiﬁl
=

Ol m

i
bl
i
e

N i == B ~

gjgﬁlﬂa; 2= D%—!él

...... . = T | B
u

i
E2
|
Ll
il

IO
i
1A

=
’g
<1

UNION STREEY
7

peeteids

| =
&
o]
kS

)

|

0

-
S\
~N 7 =\
o e (- =
s P n
- — a
| ] | =m
| e ! |
T SrreiliEiH 1
H 469-83(ainlm oft H i "
L I 4 o 3% __: > J syl u L )
i K35 H H COLORADO BOULEVARD
: \ : | J ~
I

® 520-28,
—
[ nd - ..

1

s RN
L DORADO STREET g ----- §
i Ll
5 WE{D’:&U ...... 5
! -
‘ | o0 3
Z
< X
!f‘—‘ p = -
r Vo o\]:l g

L

LOS ROBLES AVENUE

[+

U

s [ o—"

CORDOVA STREEY

Pasadena Playhouse Historic District

=== DISTRICT BOUNDARY

@ CONTRIBUTING STRUCTURE

A NON-CONTRIBUTING STRUCTURE
P PARKING LCT

«# DIRECTION OF PHOTOGRAPH ‘ 0

¢ so 188 sse 180T



